—
QWO NO O, OWN -~

W WWWWWWWWNDNDNDNDNDNDNDNDNDN=22 =22 A A a A A
O NOO OO P, WN 2000 NOODAOPRERWN-_00C0NOOOORWN -~

39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Monday July 7th, 2025 6:30PM
Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone

Members Present: Members Absent:
Dr. Michael Klemens (Chair)
Cathy Shyer (Vice Chair) arrived 6:32PM
Martin Whalen (Secretary)

Allen Cockerline (Regular Member) Staff Present
Bob Riva (Regular Member) Abby Conroy, Land Use Director (LUD)
Dr. Danella Schiffer (Alternate Member) Miles Todaro, Land Use Technical Specialist (LUTS)

Beth Wells (Alternate Member)

Brief Items and Announcements

1. Call to Order / Establish Quorum

Chair Klemens called the meeting to order at 6:30PM. A quorum was established with four regular
members present (Dr. Michael Klemens, Martin Whalen, Allen Cockerline, Bob Riva). Alternate Members
Dr. Danella Schiffer and Beth Wells were also present.

2. Approval of the Agenda

LUD Conroy proposed the following amendment:

Split agenda item #11. into parts “a. 112+138 Housatonic River Road” and “b. Map 56 Lot 34 Salisbury
Green/Civil War Memorial Park”.

Motion: To approve the agenda as amended.
Made by Cockerline, seconded by Riva.
Vote: 4-0-0 in favor.

Vice Chair Shyer joined the meeting at 6:32PM.

3. Minutes of May 19, 2025
Chair Klemens abstained from voting. The Commission edited the detailed minutes of May 19, 2025.

Motion: To approve the minutes of May 19, 2025.
Made by Riva, seconded by Cockerline.
4-0-1 in favor, with Chair Klemens abstaining

4. Minutes of June 2, 2025 - pending
5. Minutes of June 16, 2025 - pending

6. Public Comment: Public Comment is restricted to items that are neither on the agenda nor the subject
of any pending Planning & Zoning Commission application or action and are limited to three minutes per

person.

There was no public comment.

New Business

7.4#2025-0292 / Town of Salisbury / 7 Ethan Allen Street / Site Plan Application for Publicly Accessible
Electric Vehicle Charging Station (Section 207.20) / Map 49 / Lot 27-1 / DOR: 07/07/2025 / Reception and
Possible Consideration



47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
95
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
7
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Monday July 7th, 2025 6:30PM
Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone

Chair Klemens explained he previously discussed possible locations for publicly accessible Electric Vehicle
Charging Stations (EVCS) with Robert Schaufelberger, Vice Chair of the Salisbury Economic Development
Committee. Mr. Schaufelberger presented the Site Plan. He explained two EVCS are proposed on the
Grove Street side of the CNE Train Station Building in Lakeville. Power to the EVCS would run from the
basement of the Station Building. EDC Chair Katherine Kiefer explained the proposed EVCS location was
suggested instead of the previously approved location in the Grove to allow use of grant money and
avoid violations.

Vice Chair Shyer asked for clarification of the parking spot locations on the Site Plan. Commissioner
Cockerline commented that the poor image quality of the Site Plan compromised its legibility but
clarified that he was in favor of the concept.

Motion: To approve application #2025-0292 / Town of Salisbury / 7 Ethan Allen Street / Site Plan
Application for Publicly Accessible Electric Vehicle Charging Station (Section 207.20) / Map 49 / Lot 27-1
/.

Made by Cockerline, seconded by Riva.

Vote: 5-0-0 in favor.

8. #2025-0293 / Wells Hill LLC / 233 Main Street / Site Plan Application for Carpentry or Woodworking
(Section 205.2) / Map 51 / Lot 2 / DOR: 07/07/2025 / Reception and Possible Consideration

LUD Conroy explained the Water Pollution Control Authority approved the property to connect to Town
sewer. Chair Klemens explained the property owner wished to use the standalone structure as a
woodworking studio. The Commission reviewed the Site Plan. Commissioner Riva expressed concern
about noise pollution affecting a nearby motel and apartment building. LUD Conroy said noise cannot be
considered because woodworking is not a special permit use.

Motion: To approve application #2025-0293 / Wells Hill LLC / 233 Main Street / Site Plan Application for
Carpentry or Woodworking (Section 205.2) / Map 51 / Lot 2 /.

Made by Cockerline, seconded by Whalen.

Vote: 5-0-0 in favor.

Pending Business

9. #2025-3776 / David Pachter (Tim Sneller) / 136 Long Pond Road / Special Permit Application for
Detached Accessory Apartment on Single Family Residential Lot (Section 208) / Map 02 / Lot 12 / DOR:
06/16/2025 / Consideration of Completeness and Possible Scheduling of Public Hearing

The Commission reviewed the application narrative. Chair Klemens explained the property owner
proposed a detached accessory apartment. LUD Conroy explained the Land Use Office (LUO) previously
permitted a barn structure with a pickleball court and half bath. A full bath was installed instead, which
allowed the building to be potentially utilized as a detached accessory apartment. LUD Conroy explained
they are applying for the permit retroactively after construction to bring the property into compliance
and obtain a certificate of occupancy (CO). Chair Klemens asked if there are residents living in the main
house without a CO. LUD Conroy replied yes. Alternate Member Schiffer asked how the LUO
distinguished between a primary structure with accessory apartment versus two homes on one
property. LUD Conroy replied accessory apartments have an owner occupancy requirement and a



93

94

95

96

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Monday July 7th, 2025 6:30PM
Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone

maximum floor area. Alternate Member Schiffer asked for the square footage of both structures. Tim
Sneller replied the primary dwelling was seven thousand five hundred feet and the proposed accessory
apartment around two thousand square feet. Mr. Sneller also noted that Torrington Area Health District
Approval had been obtained. Vice Chair Shyer suggested the Commission should take time to review
accessory apartments for the regulation rewrite. Chair Klemens agreed.

Motion: To schedule a public hearing for application #2025-3776 / David Pachter (Tim Sneller) / 136
Long Pond Road / Special Permit Application for Detached Accessory Apartment on Single Family
Residential Lot (Section 208) / Map 02 / Lot 12 / on August 4, 2025 at 6:45PM via Zoom.

Made by Cockerline, seconded by Riva.

Vote: 5-0-0 in favor.

Other Business
10. Pre-Application Meeting — Patti Barry — Potential Zoning Map Amendment Application

Patti Barry explained she was the executor of Eugene Green’s estate. She explained that Mr. Green’s
office building located at 184 Main Street had been for sale since October 2024. Ms. Barry said the
property is located within the LI-1 Zone, and wished to amend the Zoning Map in order to allow for
residential or multi-use. She added that Mr. Green was granted permission by the Commission to
convert the property from residential to commercial use in 1983.

Chair Klemens, Secretary Whalen and Alternate Member Schiffer were not in favor of pursuing a Zoning
Map amendment at this time. Commissioner Cockerline and Alternate Member Wells believed use of the
property was consistent with the R20 Zone directly adjoining the LI-1 Zone and supported an
amendment. Commissioner Riva understood both perspectives. Ms. Barry commented that mixed-use of
the property would align with the uses in the neighboring area. Vice Chair Shyer asked if mixed use could
be added to the Table of Uses for the LI-1 Zone. LUD Conroy reminded the Commission that LI-1 is the
only Zone that has been protected from 8-30 G. She also noted that when Zoning amendments have
been proposed previously, the applicants and petitioners hired a Planner or Lawyer for assistance. Chair
Klemens asked how the public would benefit from this Zoning change. Ms. Barry replied Real Estate
Agent Diana Bisselle has said the majority of potential buyers wished to utilize the property as multi-use.

Charles Barry, who was attending the meeting with Patti Barry, commented the building structurally
resembled a home unlike neighboring industrial buildings. He asked if the Commission did not wish to
pursue a Zoning amendment due to an ongoing lawsuit. Chair Klemens replied the Commission must
avoid changing Zones for the benefit of only one property owner, and community benefit is necessary.

Chair Klemens called a brief recess at 7:42PM. The meeting resumed at 7:45PM.

11. Discussion of Events
a. 112+138 Housatonic River Road

Scott Matlock and Peter Barron represented the subject property. Mr. Matlock apologized and said they
were not aware they lacked the proper permits for their barn. He explained that event guests are asked
for charity donations only in lieu of an admission charge. There have not been permanent improvements
made to the structure, all decorations are temporary and can be removed. Chair Klemens noted the



139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Monday July 7th, 2025 6:30PM
Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone

property has an agricultural easement and the barn was approved for agriculture, meaning the events
do not match the approved use. He explained although the events are not for profit, there is activity
occurring that could disturb neighboring properties. Chair Klemens mentioned the Fire Marshal
identified safety concerns regarding the square footage of the barn and number of guests.

Vice Chair Shyer expressed support for the hosted events, but was concerned the Commission had a
responsibility to address safety concerns. Commissioner Cockerline said an explanation of what the
easement allows could be reviewed. He believed safety concerns were within the purview of the Fire
Marshal. Chair Klemens asked if the barn was associated with a principal structure on the parcel. Mr.
Matlock believed parcels 112 and 138 were merged. Secretary Whalen asked for square footage of the
barn. Mr. Matlock replied three-thousand two hundred square feet. LUD Conroy said her concern was
based on the structure’s design and occupancy opposed to square footage.

Commissioner Cockerline believed the property owner should clarify whether the events are private or
commercial. He said commercial events cannot be allowed but private events cannot be restricted.
Alternate Member Schiffer suggested the Fire Marshal examine the barn event space and provide insight
on how to make it a safer environment for a large number of guests. Chair Klemens recommended that
Mr. Matlock reach out to the Fire Marshal directly. LUD Conroy asked how to ensure the use permitted
is legal. Commissioner Cockerline suggested when applying for a tent permit, the Applicant should
submit a short narrative that describes the event. The narrative could help determine commercial versus
personal use for a private event. Chair Klemens supported this suggestion and added that a form or
checklist that asks desired questions could be created. LUD Conroy explained this option could put her in
a bad position when the LUO receives complaints from neighboring properties. Vice Chair Shyer said she
understood and believed the concern of private versus commercial is location and frequency dependent.

Vice Chair Shyer left the meeting at 8:25PM.

Chair Klemens suggested the permit could state that if complaints from neighboring properties are
received, future permits would not be issued. LUD Conroy said she could allow events with a temporary
Zoning Permit. She expressed additional concern because other properties in Town have encountered
this issue and believed the Commission should establish clear criteria for distinguishing commercial
versus private events.

Chair Klemens said the property owner should identify whether there are two separate parcels or
confirm that they are merged. He suggested that Mr. Matlock and the Fire Marshal meet and discuss
changes to address safety concerns. LUD Conroy explained she was not comfortable signing off on
Zoning compliance without a temporary Zoning permit authorized by the Commission. Chair Klemens
asked if additional events are scheduled at the barn this year. Mr. Matlock replied two charitable events
and two family member weddings. Chair Klemens suggested the property owner come to the
Commission for temporary Zoning permits for both charitable events.

b. Map 56 Lot 34 Salisbury Green/Civil War Memorial Park
LUD Conroy mentioned a previous discussion regarding a proposed private event tent at 15

Undermountain Road (the White Hart Inn) encroaching on Town property. She said Tents Unlimited
informed the LUO that First Selectman Curtis Rand provided verbal approval for the proposed tent to



185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204

205

206

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Monday July 7th, 2025 6:30PM
Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone

encroach on Town property. Chair Klemens believed an 8-24 referral would be required for any use of
Town property and so the tent could not be accommodated. LUD Conroy said the tent permit was for 15
Undermountain Road, not the Town Green. She added that the Town Green is also within the Historic
District so a permit could not be approved without a historic district ruling. Chair Klemens suggested he
and LUD Conroy discuss this matter directly with Selectman Rand.

Tabled Business

12. #2025-0287 / Wake Robin LLC & Ms. Serena Granbery (ARADEV LLC) / 104 & 106 Sharon Road & 53
Wells Hill Road / Special Permit for Hotel, Redevelopment of the Wake Robin Inn (Section 213.5) / Map
47/ Lot 2 & 2-1 / DOR: 05/05/2025 / Public Hearing Scheduled: 08/05/2025 6:30 PM / Pending Public
Hearing

Adjournment

Motion: To adjourn the meeting at 8:51PM.

Made by Cockerline, seconded by Whalen.

Vote: 4-0-0 in favor.

Respectfully Submitted,

Erika Spino

Secretary of Minutes



